

Constitution

PanAfrican Archaeological Association for Prehistory and Related Studies

ARTICLE I: NAME, OFFICIAL LANGUAGES AND HEADQUARTERS

- i. There is hereby established an official Association known as the PanAfrican Archaeological Association for Prehistory and Related Studies hereinafter referred to as ‘the Association’.
- ii. The official language of the association shall be English and French. Provided, however, that the General Congress may recognize any other language currently used in Africa in this discipline as an official language of the Association.
- iii. The General Congress may on the recommendation of the Permanent Council established by Article IV (i) of this Constitution fix the Headquarters of the Association in any African country.

ARTICLE II: OBJECTIVES

The objectives of the Association shall be:

- i. To promote and encourage and encourage interest in the study of African Archaeological Heritage.
- ii. To promote collaborative research and facilities for exchange of ideas and publications between professionals and institutions engaged in the study of African Archaeological Heritage.
- iii. To promote the training of archaeologists in Africa and to encourage research and establishment of institutions dedicated to that goal.
- iv. To work in close co-operation with other professionals in the study of archaeology.
- v. To work in close co-operation with other professionals and institutions engaged in the preservation and conservation of materials and sites relevant to African Archaeological Heritage.
- vi. To undertake such other functions as the General Congress established by Article VI (i) of this Constitution might from time to time decide.
- vii. To solicit from such sources as the Permanent Council established by Article IV (i) of this Constitution might from time to time determine, the funds necessary for the running of the activities and fulfillment of the objectives of the Association.

ARTICLE III: MEMBERSHIP

Membership shall be of two categories as hereunder:

- i. *Full membership* of the Association shall be open to any professional engaged in the study of and research in African Archaeological Heritage on payment of such membership fee and yearly subscriptions as the Permanent Council might from time to time determine under paragraph (v) of this Article (except as is otherwise provided by this Constitution):
 - (a) Full members shall enjoy all rights and privileges of the Association including the right to vote or offer themselves for election to any of the offices established by Article IV of this Constitution.
- ii. *Honorary Membership* may be conferred by the Association upon any person who in the opinion of the Business Meeting has made outstanding contribution towards realization of the objectives of this Association.
- iii. The Permanent Council of the Association shall have the power to determine, vary or review

ARTICLE IV: OFFICE BEARERS:

- i. The Association shall be directed by a Permanent Council which shall consist of the following:
 - (a) a President
 - (b) a Vice-President
 - (c) an Executive Secretary
 - (d) a Treasurer
 - (e) the Organizing Secretary of the last General Congress and the Organizing Secretary of the next General Congress.
 - (f) five other persons to be elected in such a manner as the Business Meeting of the Association might determine.
- ii. It shall be a condition for election to all categories of membership of the Permanent Council, other than that referred to in paragraph i. (e) of this Article, that a person be a citizen or resident in an African country.
- iii. All decisions of the Permanent Council shall be executed by an Executive Committee consisting of:
 - (a) the President
 - (b) Vice-President
 - (c) the Treasurer
 - (d) the Executive Secretary
- iv. The Permanent Council shall meet at least once in the interval between two General Congresses and may during these meetings give such general or particular directives to the Executive Committee as are consistent with the objectives of the Association. The Executive Secretary in consultation with the President shall determine the venue of such a meeting.
- v. The Executive Committee of the Permanent Council shall meet regularly to give effective direction to the Association and may in that capacity give such general or particular directives to the officials of the Association as are consistent with their duties under this Constitution.
- vi. In the exercise of its powers under this Constitution the Permanent Council shall have the power to establish such Commissions for general or special purposes as it may see fit.
- vii. Except as is otherwise provided by this Constitution all office bearers shall be elected by secret ballot at the Business Meeting of the Association.

ARTICLE V: POWERS AND DUTIES OF OFFICE BEARERS

Without prejudice to any other powers conferred or duties imposed upon them by this Constitution the powers and duties of the office-bearers shall be as hereunder:

- i. The President (or in his absence the Vice-President) shall preside over all meetings of the Permanent Council and the General Congress next following his election. In all of these cases the President shall have deliberative as well as the casting vote.
- ii. The Executive-Secretary shall be in charge of all the day-to-day affairs of the Association and in particular shall:
 - (a) Undertake the responsibility of producing a newsletter.
 - (b) Publish the proceedings of the General Congress as soon as possible.
 - (c) Draw-up agendas for the Permanent Council and the Business Meetings.
 - (d) Co-ordinate the activities of any commissions that might be established under Article IV (vi) of this Constitution.
- iii. The Treasurer of the Association shall:
 - (a) be responsible in the respect for all funds.

Treasurer shall be in charge of the planning administration, and act as secretary of the General Congress, and in particular he/she shall be responsible for and give an accounting for all funds allocated for the organization of the particular General Congress for which he/she is appointed organizer.

- vi. It shall be left to the Executive Secretary in consultation with the President and the authorities of the inviting country to appoint the Organizing Secretary of the General Congress.

ARTICLE VI: THE GENERAL CONGRESS

- i. There shall be a General Congress of the Association which shall meet every four years or at such other intervals as circumstances shall dictate.
- ii. The business of the General Congress shall be conducted in two separate proceedings namely the Conference and the Business Meeting as hereunder:
 - (a) the Conference shall be an academic forum for the exchange of ideas and views about African archaeology.
 - (b) the Business Meeting shall be the supreme policy-making body of the Association.
 - (c) the Executive Secretary shall act as the recorder of the Business Meeting
- iii. The quorum of the Business Meeting of the General Congress shall be 50 members.

ARTICLE VII: AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION

- i. Amendments to this Constitution shall only be made by resolution presented at the Business Meeting of the General Congress and supported by at least two-thirds of all members present.
- ii. All proposals to amend the Constitution shall be submitted to the Executive Secretary at least six months before the date of the next General Congress and shall be circulated in advance to all members of the Association.

ARTICLE VIII: DISSOLUTION

- i. The Association shall not be dissolved except by a resolution presented at the Business Meeting of the General Congress supported by two-thirds of all members.
- ii. On dissolution Assets of the Association shall be distributed to an Association with similar aims, objectives and liability. The Permanent Council shall not be liable in their personal capacity.

ARTICLE IX: INTERPRETATION

The power to interpret this Constitution shall be vested in the Permanent Council of the Association.

Constitution

Association Archéologique Panafricaine de Préhistoire et des Disciplines Associées

ARTICLE I

- i. Par la présente est établie une association officielle dénommée « Association Archéologique Panafricaine de Préhistoire et des disciplines associées », appelée ci-après « l'Association ».
- ii. Les langues officielles de l'Association devront être l'Anglais et le Français. Cependant, le Congrès Général peut considérer tout autre langue couramment utilisée en Afrique dans ces disciplines comme une des langues officielles de l'Association.
- iii. Le Congrès Général peut, sur la recommandation du Conseil Permanent établi par l'article IV (i) de ces statuts, fixer le Siège de l'Association dans tout pays d'Afrique.

ARTICLE II

Les objectifs de l'association devront être :

- i. Promouvoir et encourager l'intérêt pour l'étude des patrimoines archéologiques africains.
- ii. Promouvoir la recherche collective et faciliter les échanges d'idées et de publications entre les professionnels et les institutions impliquées dans l'étude des patrimoines archéologiques africains.
- iii. Promouvoir la formation d'archéologues en Afrique et encourager la recherche et l'établissement d'institutions en ce sens.
- iv. Travailler en étroite collaboration avec tout professionnel engagé dans l'étude des patrimoines archéologiques.
- v. Travailler en étroite collaboration avec les autres professionnels et institutions engagés dans la protection et la conservation de matériaux et sites en rapport avec les patrimoines archéologiques africains.
- vi. Assumer d'autres fonctions que le Congrès Général, établi par l'Article VI (i) de ces statuts, pourrait envisager.
- vii. Solliciter auprès de différentes sources déterminées par le Conseil Permanent, établi par l'Article IV (i) de ces statuts, les fonds nécessaires au déroulement des activités et à la réalisation des objectifs de l'Association.

ARTICLE III

Les membres seront classés selon les deux catégories suivantes :

- i. Le statut de « Membre à part entière » de l'Association sera ouvert à tout professionnel engagé dans l'étude et les recherches relatives aux patrimoines archéologiques africains. Le paiement de la cotisation et de la souscription annuelle sera déterminé par le Conseil Permanent, comme cela est stipulé au paragraphe (v) de cet article (à l'exception d'une modification des statuts de l'Association) : (a) un « membre à part entière » bénéficiera de tous les droits et privilèges de l'Association, droit de vote inclus et pourra se présenter comme candidat à l'élection des fonctions établies par l'article IV de ces statuts.
- ii. Le statut de «membre honoraire» peut être attribué par l'Association à toute personne qui, suivant l'avis de l'Assemblée Générale, aura contribué à la réalisation des objectifs de cette Association.

autre commission qui pourrait être créées par l'Association.

ARTICLES IV

- viii. L'Association sera dirigée par un Conseil Permanent composé de la manière suivante:
 - (g) Un Président
 - (h) Un Vice-Président
 - (i) Un Secrétaire Général
 - (j) Un Trésorier
 - (k) Le secrétaire organisateur du précédent Congrès Général et le secrétaire organisateur du Congrès Général à venir
 - (l) Cinq autres personnes élues lors de l'Assemblée Générale du Congrès Général.

- vi. Pour l'élection de tous les membres du Conseil Permanent, autres que ceux mentionnés dans l'alinéa (i) (e) de cet article, toute personne devra être citoyen ou résident d'un pays africain.
- vii. Toutes les décisions prises par le Conseil Permanent seront exécutées par un Comité Exécutif composé par :
 - (a) le Président
 - (b) le Vice-Président
 - (c) le Trésorier
 - (d) le Secrétaire Général
- viii. Le Conseil Permanent devra se réunir au moins une fois entre la tenue de deux Congrès Généraux et pourra à cette occasion donner des directives générales ou particulières au Comité Exécutif, en rapport avec les objectifs de l'Association. Le Secrétaire Général, en accord avec le Président, pourra fixer la date d'une telle réunion.
- ix. Le Comité Exécutif du Conseil Permanent se réunira régulièrement pour établir les orientations de l'Association et sera amené, de ce fait, à fixer pour les membres dirigeants de l'Association les directives générales ou particulières de leur travail.
- x. Dans l'exercice de ses fonctions, le Conseil Permanent aura le pouvoir d'établir des commissions pour débattre de questions d'ordre général ou particulier.
- xi. A l'exception d'une modification des statuts, tous les membres dirigeants devront être élus par bulletin secret lors de l'Assemblée Générale de l'Association.

ARTICLE V

Outre les pouvoirs conférés et les fonctions imposées par les statuts de l'Association, les pouvoirs et les fonctions des membres dirigeants seront définies comme suit :

- i. Le Président (ou, en son absence, le Vice-Président) devra présider toutes les réunions du Conseil Permanent ainsi que le Congrès Général suivant son élection. Dans tous les cas, le Président aura une voix délibérative et prépondérante.
- ix. Le Secrétaire Général sera chargé des affaires courantes de l'Association et aura en particulier la responsabilité de :
 - (a) préparer le bulletin de l'Association.
 - (b) de publier les procès verbaux du Congrès Général le plus rapidement possible.
 - (c) de préparer les ordres du jour du Conseil Permanent et de l'Assemblée Générale.
 - (d) De coordonner les activités de toutes les commissions qui pourraient être décidées (cf. article IV (vi)).
- x. Les fonctions du Trésorier sont définies comme étant les suivantes :

V. Le Secrétaire organisateur du Congrès, en accord avec le Secrétaire Général et le Trésorier, sera chargé du planning et de l'organisation du Congrès Général à venir. A ce titre, il aura la fonction du Secrétaire du Congrès. Il sera en particulier responsable et devra justifier des fonds alloués pour l'organisation du Congrès Général pour lequel il aura été nommé organisateur.

VI. Il sera laissé le soin au Secrétaire Général, en accord avec le Président et les autorités au pays où se déroulera le Congrès Général, de désigner le Secrétaire organisateur du Congrès Général.

ARTICLES VI

- iv. Le Congrès Général de l'Association aura lieu tous les quatre ans ou à un autre intervalle selon les circonstances.
- v. Le Congrès Général s'organisera autour de deux types de travaux distincts : les conférences et la tenue de l'Assemblée Générale :
 - (a) Les conférences se dérouleront dans le cadre d'un forum académique visant à croiser les idées et les points de vue sur les patrimoines archéologiques africains.
 - (b) L'Assemblée Générale sera un lieu de débat sur le fonctionnement de l'Association ; elle constitue l'organe de décision suprême de l'Association.
 - (c) Le Secrétaire Général sera le rapporteur de l'Assemblée Générale.
- vi. Le quorum de l'Assemblée Générale du Congrès Général sera de 50 membres.

ARTICLE VII

- i. Les réformes des statuts de l'Association devront être proposées lors de l'Assemblée Générale du Congrès Général et devront être approuvées par au moins deux tiers des membres présents.
- ii. Toutes les propositions de réforme des statuts de l'Association devront être soumises au Secrétaire Général au minimum six mois avant la date du prochain Congrès Général et devront être connues à l'avance par tous les membres de l'Association.

ARTICLE VIII

- iii. L'Association ne sera pas dissoute excepté par une décision prise en Assemblée Générale lors du Congrès Général ; elle devra être approuvée par deux tiers de tous les membres.
- iv. En cas de dissolution, les avoirs de l'Association seront distribués à des associations ayant des buts, des objectifs et des responsabilités similaires. Les membres du Conseil Permanent ne pourront être tenus responsables de manière individuelle.

ARTICLES IX

- i. Le Conseil Permanent de l'Association sera investi du pouvoir d'interprétation des statuts de l'Association.